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COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATIONS OF
THE FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,
vs.

PLUS MONEY, INC. and MATTHEW LA
MADRID,

Defendants,

THE PREMIUM RETURN FUND
LIMITED-LIABILITY LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP; THE PREMIUM RETURN
FUND I LIMITED-LIABILITY LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP; THE PREMIUM RETURN

{|FUND Il LIMITED-LIABILITY LIMITED

PARTNERSHIP; RETURN FUND, LLC,
RETURN FUND II, LLC; RETURN FUND
III, LLC; RETURN FUND IV, LLC;
RETURN FUND V, LLC; RETURN FUND
VI, LLC; PALLADIUM HOLDING
COMPANY; and DONALD LOPEZ,

Relief Defendants.
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Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission :(“Commission") alleges as follows:
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. The Couﬂ has jurisdictibn over this action pursuant to Sections 209(d), 209(e)(1)
and 214 of the Investmeﬁt Advisers Act of 1940 (“Advisers Act”), 15 U.8.C. §§ 80b-9(d), 80b-
9(e)(1) and 80b-14.

2. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to Section 214 of the Advisers Act [1 5
U.SC. § 80b-14]. |

3. The acts, practices, and courses of business constituting the violations alleged
herein occurred within the jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Southern
District of California and elsewhere. .

4. The Defendants, directly and indirectly, have made, and are making, use of the
means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce and of the mails or of the facilities of a
national exchange in connection with the acts, practices, and courses of business alleged herein
in the Southern District of California and elsewhere.

SUMMARY

5. This matter involves an investment adviser fraud perpetrated by defendants
Matthew “Beau” La Madrid and Plus Money, Inc., an entity controlled by La Madrid. Since
May 2004, Plus Money has acted as the investment adviser to three purported hedge funds (the
“Premiuni Return Funds” or the “Funds”). Between May 2004 and July 2007, the Premium
Return Funds raised approximately $30.6 million from at least 300 investors. Lé Madrid, a
former registered representative of a broker-dealer, told investors that he had ailucrative'
investment strategy involving the purchase and sale of covered call options. Althdugh Plus
Money ﬁnd La Madrid employed some variation of a covered call-obtion trading strategy for a
period of time, and although Plus Money and La Madrid paid purported monthly profits to Fund
investors for a period of tifne even after all trading activity had ceased, it is unclear how much
profit, if any, Plus Money and La Madrid actually generated from this strategy.

6. Unbeknownst to the investors, trading activity in the Premium Return Funds’

brokerage accounts essentially ceased in the Fall of 2007 and La Madrid dissipated the money

1




Lt A WM

[o <R |

10
11
12
13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Case 3:08-cv-00f-H-NLS  Document1  Filed Of§8/2008 Page 3 of 12

held in those accounts through a series of illicit transfers.

7. Between September and October 2007, without telling the investors, Plus Money

|| and La Madrid wired $7.6 million from the Premium Return Funds’ brokerage accounts to

Vision Quest Investments, a dba La Madrid formed in September 2007. On November 14, 2007,
Vision Quest wired $10 million to felief defendant Palladium Holding Company, an entity
controlled by relief defendant Donald Lopez. Soon after receiving these funds, Palladium
transferred $5 million to a brokerage account it controlled, and began executing numerous short-
sell transactions of Treasury bonds. This rampant trading activity has caused a steady dissipation
of the assets in Palladium’s brokerage account. As of April 25, 2008, only $2.425 million
remained available in the account, and at least $875,000 had been wired from Palladium’s
brokerage account to its bank account.

8. Palladium diSpérsed the remainder of the funds received from Vision Quest in a
variety of ways, wiring approximately $4.5 million to various individuals and entities, including
$500,000 to La Madrid, $1.8 million to several real estate title companies, $95,000 towards the

purchase of two automobiles, and another $90,000 to a Denver car dealership.

THE DEFENDANTS

9. Plus Money, Inc. is a Nevada corporation based in El Cajon, California. Since
2004 Plus Money was the investment adviser to and managed the Premium Return Funds. Plus
Money is not registered as an investment adviser under the Advisers Act.

10.  Matthew La Madrid, age 41, is a resident of Jamul, California. La Madrid is the
President and Treasurer of Plus Money. La Madrid controls Plus Money and has acted as the
investment adviser for the Premium Return Funds, including making all of the investment
decisions on behalf of the Premium Return Funds. La Madrid is not registered as an investment
adviser under the Advisers Act. |

THE RELIEF DEFENDANTS

11. The Premium Return Fund Limited-Liability Limited Partnership is a
Nevada based limited partnership formed in August 2004. Its general partner is Plus Money, Inc. -
From November 2004 through at least July 2007, this partnership raised at least $6.2 lmillion

2
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from investors.

12, The Premium Return Fund II Limited-Liability Limited Partnership is a
Nevada based limited partnership formed in June 2005, Its general partner is Plus Money, Inb.
Between June 2005 and July 2007, this partnership raised at least $7.5 million from at least 115
investors.

| 13. The Premium Return Fund III Limited-Liability Limited Partnership is a
Nevada based limited partnership formed in February 2006. Its general partner is Plus Money,
Inc. Between March 2006 and July 2007, this partnership raised at least $12.7 million from at
least 90 investors.

14.  Return Fund, LLC is a Nevada based limited liability company formed in June
2004, Its manager is Pius Money, Inc.

15.  Return Fund II, LLC is a Nevada based limited liability company formed in
June 2005. Its manager is Plus Money, Inc.

16.  Return Fund III, LLC is a Nevada based limited liability company formed in
February 2006. Its manager is Plus Money, Inc.

17.  Return Fund IV, LLC is a Nevada based limited liability company formed in
June 2006. Its manager is Plus Money, Inc.

18.  Return Fund V, LLC is a Nevada based limited liability company formed in
June 2006. Its manager is Plus Money, Inc.

19.  Return Fund VI, LLC is a Nevada based limited liability company formed in
June 2006. Its manager is Plus Money, Inc.

20. Palladium Holding Company is a Colorado corporation formed in October
2002. Donald Lopez incorporated Palladium and is it sole director. On November 14, 2007, La
Madrid, through a dba, wired $10 million to Paliadium.

21.  Donald E. Lopez, age 58, is a resident of Denver, Colorado. Lopez incorporated
Palladium and is the company’s sole director.

- FACTUAL BACKGROUND _
22, Between May 2004 and July 2007, Plus Money and La Madrid raised
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approximately $30.6 million dollars from at least 300 investors, Of this amount, over $26
million received from investors was placed directly into the Premium Return Funds’ accounts.
La Madrid also raised an additional $4.2 million from investors between June 2004 and May
2006 that initially was placed in brokerage accounts held in La Madrid’s name, but which funds
he eventually transferred to the Premium Return Funds’ brokerage accounts.

23.  Investors were solicited through word of mouth referral, as well as througﬁ an
Internet website touting Plus Money’s investment program and La Madrid’s financial expertise.
La Madrid told investors that while a minimum of $25,000 was required to i;‘lVeSt in Fund II, the
minimum investment for Fund III was only $1,000. For all of the Premium Return Funds, the
investment strategy represented to investors remained the same — the purchase and sale of
covered call options — and all investment decisions‘ were to be made solely by La Madrid. La
Madrid received a 1% quarterly fee from the Premium Return Funds for his investment advisory
services.

24.  The Premium Return Funds are pooled investment vehicles within the meaning of
the Advisers Act. As investment advisers, Plus Money and La Madrid were fiduciaries of, or
had a similar relationship of trust and confidence with, the Premium Return Fund Investors.

25.  Plus Money and La Madrid also e-mailed Premium Return Fuhd investors a
monthly spreadsheet purporting to show how much each investor had invested, how much each
investor had been paid that month, and the current holdings of each of the Premium Return
Funds. |

26. Undisclosed to investors, in the Fall of 2007, Plus Money began transferring
nearly all of the funds from the Premium Return Funds’ brokerage accounts to a bank account
controlled by La Madrid through a dba he established in September 2007 — Vision Quest
Investments.

27. On November 14, 2007 Vision Quest transferred $10 million to Palladium
Holding Company, a Denver-based eﬁtity controlled by relief defendant Lof)ez.

28.  Upon receiving the $10 million from La Madrid, Palladium promptly transferred

$5 million to its brokerage account and, within the next month, wired $4.5 million to various

4
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|

individuals and entities, including $500,000 back to La Madrid, $1.8 million to several real estate
title companies, $95,000 towards the purchase of two automobiles, and another $90,000 to a
Denver car dealership.

29.  Palladium quickly began dissipating the $5 million transferred into its brokerage
account by engaging in numerous short-sell transactions involvix}g Treasury bonds. Between
February and April 2008, Palladium wired $875,000 out of this brokerage accourit and into its
bank account. Additionally, since November 2007, Palladium has paid $557,810 in commissions
to its brokerage, EKN Financial Services, Inc. As of April 25, 2008 this activity had depleted
more than half of the account’s value, reducing its total value to approximately $2.4 million.

30. Plus Money and La Madrid never disclosed to the Premium Return Fund
investors that they had transferred the Preﬁim Return Fund monies to Palladium or the extent
to which Palladium had dissipated those assets. To the contrary, on April 5, 2008, Plus Money
and La Madrid e-mailed the Premium Return Fund II investors a spreadsheet showing that
investors had eamned returns averaging roughly 2.5% per month through J anuary 2008. This was
false because, as described above, Plus Money and La Madrid had already transferred virtually
all assets out of the Premium Return Funds® brokerage accounts by October 2007. By November
2007, there was almost no further activity in any of these accounts. &

31 In February 2008 Plus Money failed to make monthly payments to the Premium
Return Fund investors. In a series of e-mails, La Madrid attempted to reassure investors about
the safety of their investment, For example, in a February 13 e-mail to investors, La Madrid
falsely claimed that the reason February checks had not been issued was due to “ongoing ’
negotiations” associated with a “pending SEC inquiry.” This statement was false, as the
Commission had no contact with La Madrid or Plus Money until April 9, 2008, when the
Commission staff requested that Plus Money voluntarily provide information about its activities |
— a request to which Plus Money has not responded. |

32, In subsequent emails in February and March 2008, La Madrid continued to
assure investors that it was continuing the (non-existent) negotiations with the Commission, that

the situation soon would be resolved, and that Plus Money would then send checks to the

5
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investors. At no point did La Madrid or Plus Money disclose to investors that they had in fact
abandoned the covered call trading:strategy,'emptied out the Plus Return Funds’ accounts, and
dissipated the assets through Vision Quest and Palladium.
FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
FRAUD BY AN INVESTMENT ADVISER
Violations Of Sections 206 (1) and (2) of the Advisers Act of 1940
(Against All befendants)

33.  The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference Y9 1 through 32, above.

34.  Atall times alleged in the Complaint, Plus Money and La Madrid each were
investment advisers as defined under the Advisers Act. Plus Money and La Madrid held
ﬂaemsélvcs out as being in the business of advising others as to irivesting in covered call options,
and managed the investments of the Premium Return Funds in exchange for compensation in the
form of a quarterly fee.

35,  Plus Money and La Madrid, by engaging in the conduct described above, directly
or indirectly, by the use of the mails or means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce:

a. with scienter, employed and are employing devices, schemes and artifices to
defraud clients or prospective clients; or

b. engaged in and are engaged in transactions, practices, and courses of business
which operated as a fraud or deceit upon clients or prospective clients.

36. By reason of the activities described herein, Plus Money and La Madrid have
violated and unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate Sections 206(1) and (2) of the
Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-6(1) and {2}).

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
FRAUD BY AN INVESTMENT ADVISER
Violations of 206(4) of the Advisers Act of 1940 and Rule 206(4)-8 Thereunder
(Against All Defendants) _
37. The Commission realleges and in.corporates by reference Y 1 through 32, aone.

38. At all times alleged in the Complaint, Plus Money and La Madrid each were

6
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investment advisers as defined under the Ad\lrisers Act. Plus Money and La Madrid held
themselves out as being in the business of advising others as to investing in covered call options,
and managed the investments of the Premium Return Funds in exchange for compensation in the
form of a quarterly fee.

39.  Plus Money and La Madrid, by engaging in the conduct described above, directly
or indirectly, by use of the mails or means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce:

a. engaged in transactions, practices, or courses of business which operate as a fraud
or deceit upon investors in the Prémium Return Funds;

b. made untrue statements of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading, to investors or prospective investors in a
pooled investment vehicle; or |

c. otherwise engaged in acts, practices, or courses of business that were fraudulent,
deceptive, or manipulative with respect to investors or prospective investors in a
pooled investment véhicle. .

40. By reason of the activities described herein, Plus Money and La Madrid have
violated and unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate Sections 206(4) of the
Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-6(4)] and Rule 206(4)-8 [17 C.F.R. § 275.206(4)-8] thereunder.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court:

L |

Issue findings of fact and conclusions of law that the defendants committed the alleged
violations.

IL

Issue judgments, in a form consistent with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure, temporarily restraining, and preliminarily, and permanently enjoining Plus Money
and La Madrid, and their officers, agents, servants, employees and attorneys, and those in active

concert or participation with any of them, who receive actual notice of the order by personal

7
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‘|| service or otherwise, and each of them, from violating Sections 206(1), 206(2), and 206(4) of the

Advisers Act of 1940, 15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1), 80b-6(2), and 80b-6(4), and Rule 206(4)-8
thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 275.206(4)-8. ' '
.

Issue, in a form consistent with Fed. R. Civ. P. 65, an order freezing the assets of the
defendants and relief defendants and an order appointing a receiver over the assets of Plus
Money and each of the relief defendants other than Palladium and Lopez. |

v,
Order a verified accounting by Plus Money and La Madrid.
| ' V.
Order expedited discovery in this action.
VI.

Order the Defendants and the Relief Defendants to disgorge all ill-gotten gains from the

illegal conduct alleged herein, together with prejudgment intetest_ thereon. |
| - VIL

Issue, in a form consistent with Fed. R. Civ. P. 65, a temporary restrairiing order and
preliminary injunction prohibiting La Madrid and Plus Money from destroying documents.

| VIII.

Order Plus Money and La Madrid to pay civil penalties under Section 209(e) of the
Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C. §80B-9(e).

IX.

Retain jurisdiction of this action in accordance with the principles of equity and the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in order to implement and carry out the terms of all orders and
decrees that may be entered, or to entertain any suitable application or motion for additional
relief within the jurisdicﬁon of this Court.

i

i
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X.

Grant such other and further relief as this Court may determine to be just and necessary.

DATED: April 27, 2008 :
?..,Q?CEJZ SecoHreces
Peter F. Del Greco

Attorney for Plaintiff
Securities and Exchange Commission
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